1951

# Utah Pipe Line Co. v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief for Petitioner

Utah Supreme Court

**STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE**

This is an appeal to this Honorable Court by writ of certiorari from the proceedings, Findings and Report and Order, of the Public Service Commission of Utah

in case No. 3504 before said Commission, entitled "In the Matter of the Application of Utah Natural Gas Company for a certificate of convenience and necessity." The petition for writ of certiorari was filed by Utah Pipe Line Company, a corporation, an intervener in the above proceedings before the Public Service Commission of Utah under and by virtue of Section 76-6-16 of the Utah Code Annotated, 1943. The writ of certiorari thus petitioned for was granted by this Court. Respondents filed their motions to dismiss the petition for writ of certiorari and the writ of certiorari granted pursuant thereto "on the grounds and for the reason that it affirmatively appears from said petition for writ of certiorari that the petitioner, the Utah Pipe Line Company, does not have a justiciable interest in the subject matter of the action." This Honorable Court has heretofore overruled said motions to dismiss, and the case is now before the Court on the merits. Except as otherwise indicated, all italics are supplied.

## THE RECORD ON APPEAL

The record from the Public Service Commission consists of four volumes, Volume I being numbered R. 1 to R. 493, inclusive, and comprising a portion of the transcript of the testimony; Volume II being numbered R. 494 to R. 1039, inclusive, and comprising the transcript of the balance of the testimony and of the arguments made by counsel before the Commission; Volume III being numbered R. 1040 to R. 1105, inclusive, and made

up of the numerous exhibits received in the case; and Volume IV being numbered R. 1106 to R. 1228, inclusive, and comprising, among other things, the various applications, petitions to intervene, Findings and Report and Order of the Commission, the petition for the rehearing, and the petition for the writ of certiorari.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Utah Pipe Line Company, petitioner herein, is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, qualified to do business in the State of Utah, and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Delhi Oil Corporation. Delhi Oil Corporation and Utah Pipe Line Company have their principal offices at Dallas, Texas. Utah Pipe Line Company proposes to construct and operate a natural gas pipeline system extending a distance of approximately 392 miles from a point near Aztec, New Mexico, to a point or points in and near Salt Lake City, Utah, and to commence the construction of such facilities promptly after the issuance of the necessary certificates of public convenience and necessity and to place the facilities in operation on or before January 1, 1952 at an estimated overall cost of approximately \$22,000,000. (R. 1148). Utah Pipe Line Company has pending before the Federal Power Commission and before the Public Service Commission of Utah its respective applications for the necessary certificates of convenience and necessity (R.

1149, R. 1184). Utah Pipe Line Company has available proven gas reserves approximating 1 trillion cubic feet to be committed to its proposed pipeline and has been in negotiation with industrial consumers in the Salt Lake City area for the sale of natural gas to them (R. 1150)

Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company is a Delaware Corporation, qualified to do business in Utah, its president and principal officer and stockholder being Mr. John A. McGuire, an attorney who resides at Lowell, Massachusetts (R. 19). At the commencement of the hearing before the commission the paid in capital of Utah Natural Gas Company was \$1,000, all of which was subscribed for by Mr. McGuire (R. 21). Because of the similarity of names, i.e. Utah Pipe Line Company and Utah Natural Gas Company, we will sometimes hereafter refer to the respondent, Utah Natural Gas Company as the McGuire Company and to the petitioner, Utah Pipe Line Company, as Utah Pipe Line.

The McGuire Company has no gas acreage and does not intend to acquire any gas reserves, its plan being to buy in the field from independent producers natural gas for delivery into its pipeline as and when structures in Utah may be drilled and natural gas in marketable quantities developed (R. 27, 28). As a typical example of how the McGuire Company intended to operate we refer to Exhibit 50 (R. 1089) which is as follows :

“EXHIBIT NO. 50

“N. G. Morgan, Sr.	Telephones 4-5521
N. G. Morgan, Jr.	4-5522
Dr. Paul T. Walton	

“MORGAN & WALTON OILS  
Suite 518 Wasatch Oil Building  
Salt Lake City, Utah

December 14, 1950

“Utah Natural Gas Company  
Salt Lake City, Utah

“Gentlemen :

“We agree to commit to the Utah Natural Gas Company all gas produced to our interests in the following structures in the State of Utah, which we consider productive of gas :

Clear Creek Anticline  
Scofield Reservoir Anticline  
Flat Canyon Anticline  
Joe's Valley Anticline  
Lake Shore Anticline

“This agreement is contingent on the completion of the pipe line and its readiness to purchasers within two years from January 1, 1951.

“Before the delivery of any gas to said line, a mutually satisfactory contract will be negotiated

between us, providing for a minimum rate of 10¢ per thousand for gas showing BTU content and pressures of standard character.”

Yours very truly,

MORGAN-WALTON OIL &  
GAS, INC.

By (s) N. G. MORGAN, SR.  
(s) PAUL T. WALTON  
(s) N. G. MORGAN, JR.

ACCEPTED BY:  
UTAH NATURAL GAS CO.

(s) John A. McGuire  
President”

That is to say, Mr. McGuire on behalf of the McGuire Company obtained numerous conditional commitments from Mr. N. G. Morgan, Sr., Byrd-Frost, and others to the effect that gas which might be developed from structures not yet drilled would be committed to the McGuire Company pipeline. In short, Mr. McGuire’s plan was to obtain a certificate of public convenience and necessity for the construction of a pipeline and as and when structures might be drilled in Utah by independent operators and natural gas in commercial quantities developed, the McGuire Company would purchase in the field such gas for delivery into its pipeline. The McGuire Company did not contend before the Commission that it had committed adequate proven gas reserves for delivery through its pipeline and there is no conflict in the evidence that the construction of its pipeline depends entirely upon the results of wildcat drilling by independent operators.

The pipeline project of the McGuire Company proposes a pipe line to deliver 100 million cubic feet of natural gas into the Salt Lake area each day. The standard requirement by financial institutions interested in financing natural gas pipelines is that a proven gas supply be available to the pipeline for a period of not less than twenty years (R. 471). Therefore a pipeline project planned to deliver 100 million cubic feet of natural gas each twenty-four hours for twenty years would need a supply equivalent to:  $100,000,000 \times 365 \times 20$ . This is a tremendous requirement and developed reserves less in quantity than those adequate for a "break even" operation would not permit the required financing (R. 460). Exhibit 58 (R. 1097) was produced by a witness for the McGuire Company and shows that it would require a daily sale of 76,169,958 physical units (MCF) at the McGuire Company's proposed rates of  $23\frac{3}{4}\text{¢}$  to Utah industrial users and at  $30\text{¢}$  to other users per MCF for the McGuire Company to reach the break even point on its proposed project.

The only claim of proven gas reserves committed to the McGuire pipeline consists of an insignificant amount of natural gas in the Boundary Butte structure near the Utah-Arizona line. The insignificant quantity of gas in this structure will be dealt with in detail sub-



sequently in the brief. There is no pipeline to the Boundary Butte structure and the gas in the structure is of an extremely low BTU content.

While the paid in capital of the McGuire Company at the time the hearing began on December 11, 1950 was \$1,000, by the time the hearing adjourned the capital stock issued or reserved for issue had grown to \$78,760 (Ex. 68, R. 1105). The accountant for the McGuire Company would not certify to these figures and stated that all he knew about them was what Mr. McGuire had told him, but that it was his understanding this increase represented unclassified expenditures such as for professional services, travel expenses and other items (R. 947 to 949).

The McGuire Company in its amended application for the certificate stated that it had the ownership of or could by firm contracts secure the ownership and delivery of the required quantities of natural gas for its pipeline and that it was financially able to perform and carry out the construction of the line and the required facilities (R. 1111, R. 1113). Notwithstanding the fact that Mr. McGuire is a lawyer and must appreciate the difference between a firm commitment and an instrument which does not create any binding obligation, he produced Exhibit 45 (R. 1084) as evidence of ability to adequately finance the project. This exhibit is as follows:

“Chicago Office  
231 South LaSalle Street

“LEHMAN BROTHERS

One William Street  
New York 4  
July 25th, 1950

“Utah Natural Gas Company  
Suite 1311, Walker Bank Building  
Salt Lake City 1, Utah

“Dear Sirs :

“This letter is to confirm the fact that officers of your company have discussed with us the subject of your obtaining a financing for the construction of a gas pipe line from the four corners area to the Salt Lake City market, and for the purchase of other related facilities.

“While a number of things still remain to be done, such as obtaining a certificate from the Public Service Commission of the State of Utah, obtaining assurance of adequate available gas reserves, an engineering report covering construction and operating matters, etc., this letter is further to confirm that we will undertake to provide adequate financing for the Company, either by a private placement or public offering of its securities, when all the necessary preparatory steps have been satisfactorily completed.”

“Very truly yours,  
LEHMAN BROS.”

The Byrd-Frost interests of Dallas, Texas, were active in support of the application of McGuire Company but Col. Byrd testified that neither he nor his associates

in Byrd-Frost had any stock interest in the McGuire Company (R. 735 & 932-936). At the time of the hearing the Byrd-Frost interests were drilling a well (Sitton No. 1) at Monticello and intended to drill what is commonly called the Last Chance structure in Emery County.

The Commission permitted Utah Pipe Line to intervene in the McGuire Company's case but refused to permit Utah Pipe Line to offer any evidence as to its gas reserves in New Mexico and its proposed pipeline from Aztec to Salt Lake City. The Commission also failed to take any action with regard to a hearing upon the application of Utah Pipe Line (R. 1221) for a certificate.

The application of McGuire Company was filed with the Commission on May 29, 1950, (R. 1106). No notice of the application was given and nothing was done with regard thereto until November 17, 1950, when an amended application (R. 1111) was filed enlarging upon the program of the applicant. On November 24, 26, and 28, 1950, notice of a hearing on the amended application was published in the Salt Lake Tribune, the hearing being scheduled for December 11, 1950. Notice was mailed to J. Glenn Turner, Dallas, Texas, general counsel for Delhi Oil Corporation and one of the attorneys for Utah Pipe Line. Whether Mr. McGuire had learned of the plans of Delhi Oil Corporation to build through a subsidiary, a pipeline from the San Juan Basin of New Mexico to Salt Lake City is not certain, but it is a fair inference (R. 1028) that this accounted for the short notice and the

sudden necessity of speed in the disposition of the McGuire Company's application. At the beginning of the hearing on the McGuire application Mr. Turner entered an appearance on behalf of Utah Pipe Line and asked leave to file its petition to intervene in the proceeding. The petition of Utah Pipe Line set forth that there was then pending before the Federal Power Commission an application of Utah Pipe Line for a certificate of public convenience and necessity authorizing the construction and operation of a pipeline from Aztec, New Mexico to Salt Lake City; that Utah Pipe Line proposed to construct and operate such line and that the gas reserves available to Utah Pipe Line approximated 1 trillion cubic feet; that Utah Pipe Line was informed and believed that the McGuire Company had insufficient and inadequate reserves and that if a certificate were granted to the McGuire Company it would be unable to furnish the service and that any attempt by the McGuire Company to transport gas by its pipe line from outside Utah would have to be made through the Federal Power Commission (R. 1148-1153). When Mr. Turner presented the petition of Utah Pipe Line for leave to intervene, counsel for the McGuire Company strenuously objected and the following occurred:

“MR. TURNER: Mr. Commissioner, may I be heard with reference to that?”

“COM. BENNETT: You may.

“MR. TURNER: Utah Pipe Line Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Delhi Oil Com-

pany. Delhi Oil Company owns substantial oil and gas holdings in New Mexico.

“We expect to prove, if allowed to participate in this hearing, that we ourselves have approximately 1 trillion feet of gas ourselves under our own leases. It is a matter of common knowledge — it has been the subject of considerable comment, and it is generally known we have been negotiating for quite some time with industrial customers in the Salt Lake City area, and those negotiations are down to the last stages. We have had the right of way surveyed; we have taken all the steps—and it is true we just recently filed with the Federal Power Commission, but we expect to prove, if allowed to intervene, that the applicant is merely trying to preempt the Salt Lake City industrial market, that they do not have sufficient gas reserves; that it would be impossible to support this line unless it is an interstate line, and that the Federal Power Commission, if it is going to be an interstate line, is the first body who will have to authorize a certificate.

“Now we have filed our application. We propose to serve substantially the same market that these gentlemen propose to serve, and we say that it is in the public interest for this Commission to hear both projects and both plans and decide which of the 2 plans it should allow. We think that it is obvious that you couldn't have 2 lines coming in here, and we think that as a direct competitor that we do have a direct interest in this proceeding, and if allowed to intervene, we will present such data as the Commission may desire to show

that we do have the gas, that we are in good faith in wanting to serve the Utah area, and that we will take all prompt steps to that end.

“But, we do think that if a certificate were here given the applicant without sufficient gas reserves, it would confuse the issues, as counsel says, and we think it would be in the public interest for this Commission to hear both of these competing projects at the same time.

“MR. CORNWALL: I think our views are expressed, Mr. Commissioner.

“COM. BENNETT: We will be in recess for 5 minutes at this time.”

\* \* \* \*

“COM. BENNETT: The hearing will be in session.

“The commission believes that the Utah Pipe Line Company has shown sufficient interest to intervene. The Commission also feels that such intervention should be limited as to the reasons alleged—as to why the petitioner’s application should not be granted, but in no instance should this be used as a place for the Utah Pipe Line Company to try and prove a case which the Commission does not have before it.

“If they intend to petition this Commission for a hearing for a pipeline, why that would have to be done in its usual manner.

“So, while the petition of intervention will be granted, it will be granted in a limited manner, as set out here.

“MR. CORNWALL: Do I understand, Mr. Commissioner, that the showing which the Intervenor is entitled to make here will be a showing going to the merits of our application, but, they will not be entitled to make affirmative proof with respect to their proposed application; is that the position of the Commission?”

“COM. BENNETT: That is the position of the Commission.” (R. 10-13)

In other words, the ruling of the Commission was to the effect that Utah Pipe Line would not be permitted to offer any evidence with regard to its application pending before the Federal Power Commission nor with regard to its gas reserves in New Mexico or its proposed pipeline project. That ruling of the Commission was never changed and throughout the proceeding Utah Pipe Line was barred from presenting any evidence in its support. Its participation was limited to a showing of what the McGuire Company did not have.

The hearing on the McGuire Company's application continued through December 11, 12, 13 and 14, 1950, and was then adjourned to January 29, 1951. On January 26, 1951 Utah Pipe Line filed with the Commission its application entitled “In the Matter of the Application of Utah Pipe Line Company,” case No. 3578, a copy which is attached as Exhibit “C” to the petition for the writ of certiorari herein, and will be found at R. 1199, and a map of its proposed line will be found at R. 1204. On the following day, January 27, 1951, Utah Pipe Line filed with



the Commission a request that the Commission arrange with the Federal Power Commission for a "joint hearing" of the two applications of Utah Pipe Line (R. 1188). Utah Pipe Line, in its verified application for such certificate, again stated that in excess of 1 trillion cubic feet of proven natural gas reserves in the Angel's Peak, Blanco, Largo and Glade areas in San Juan County, New Mexico, were available to Utah Pipe Line for transmission and disposition through its proposed pipeline into the Salt Lake area. Without considering any of the said matters and without granting Utah Pipe Line a hearing on its application and without granting or denying its motion for a joint hearing with the Federal Power Commission and after limiting Utah Pipes Line's participation as aforesaid in the hearing upon the application of the McGuire Company, on March 12, 1951, the Commission made its Findings and Report and Order and granted to the McGuire Company certificate of convenience and necessity No. 925.

The Commission recognized that the McGuire Company had not made a sufficient showing of proven gas reserves or of adequate financing. The Findings of the Commission are clear in this regard. On page 6 of the Findings (R. 1169) the Commission says:

"The Commission further finds that the estimated reserves in the area where the applicant has gas purchase contracts are sufficient, *if proved*, to make the construction of applicant's pipe line and facilities economically feasible."

\* \* \* \*

"The Commission further finds that if said reserves are proved, the applicant can secure gas purchase contracts to deliver the gas so purchased and developed into its pipe line. The Commission further finds that the operation of the pipe line will be economically feasible with the available market *if* the estimated reserves are proved; and that *if* said pipe line is economically feasible the applicant can secure the necessary financing for the construction of the same."

In short, the Findings and Report are to the effect that the McGuire Company *claimed* to have adequate proven gas reserves, and based upon that assumption, the Commission then found that "estimated reserves—are sufficient, *if proved*," and "*that if said reserves are proved*, the applicant can secure gas purchase contracts to deliver the gas so proved." In effect, the Commission found that the McGuire Company was entirely dependent upon the results of limited wildcat drilling for its gas supply.

Although recognizing that the McGuire Company had not made a sufficient showing of proven gas reserves or of the required financing, nevertheless the Commission granted the certificate and gave the McGuire Company one year within which to:

"(a) File with this Commission the unconditional commitment of a financial house of recognized responsibility committing itself to supply the funds necessary for the construction of the pipe line and facilities to be installed by Utah Natural Gas Company;

“(b) Concurrently with the furnishing of such commitment and as a part thereof, Utah Natural Gas Company shall file with this Commission the certificate of an independent geologist of recognized professional standing, acceptable to this Commission, that there are proven gas reserves committed to Utah Natural Gas Company adequate to justify the construction of the line and facilities;

“(c) Deposit with this Commission copies of any gas purchase contracts entered into with owners of producing gas wells;

“(d) Deposit with this Commission a copy or copies of its contracts then entered into with a recognized responsible construction firm or firms for the construction of said line and facilities; and

“(e) Pending the compliance with the conditions herein imposed, Utah Natural Gas Company shall make no public offering of its stock or other securities.” (R. 1173).

## OUTLINE OF ARGUMENT

I. THE RECORD CONTAINS NO COMPETENT, SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT THE ORDER; THE FINDINGS AND REPORT DO NOT SUPPORT THE ORDER AND THE ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATE.

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