1951

# Utah Pipe Line Co. v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company

Utah Supreme Court

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

“The Commission further finds that the estimated reserves in the area where the applicant has gas purchase contracts *are sufficient, if proved*, to make the construction of applicant’s pipe line and facilities economically feasible.” (Italics ours.)

The term “proved” refers to a sufficient development of “blocked out” *available gas* at the surface. The Commission in effect gave the Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company one year to develop from the *adequate reserves* such a proven available amount to justify the financing and immediate construction of the line. The Commission said:

“\* \* \* The Commission further concludes, however, that conditions should be imposed upon such authority so granted requiring that within one year from the date the order granting such certificate of convenience and necessity shall be effective said Utah Natural Gas Company shall

\* \* \* \* \*

“(b) Concurrently with the furnishing of such commitment and as a part thereof, Utah Natural Gas Company shall file with this Commission the certificate of an independent geologist of recognized professional standing, acceptable to this Commission, that there are proven gas reserves committed to Utah Natural Gas Company adequate to justify the construction of the line and facilities; \* \* \*”

In the event the Utah Natural Gas Company does not file with the Commission the certificate required the conditional rights issued shall become null and void. In the event the Respondent does file such certificate any party to the proceeding, including, of course, the Appellant, will have an opportunity to be heard and to cross-examine. If there can be any question about the Commission's intention it is fully explained and clarified by Commission's counsel in his brief at page 16 wherein he states:

"It is contended by the Petitioner that the Public Service Commission of Utah in the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity issued on March 12, 1951 delegated to a geologist the power of the Commission to make a finding as to the adequacy of the gas supply of Utah Natural Gas Company. This, the Commission did not intend to do and does not believe that it did do.

"In order to determine whether or not there is an adequate supply of gas it is, of course, necessary for the Commission to lean very heavily upon the testimony of expert witnesses on this subject. The Commission has listened to experts produced by Utah Natural Gas Company, by Utah Pipe Line Company and other interested parties and reserves the right to make its own investigation to aid it to determine this fact. If the language of the Commission order is subject to the interpretation placed thereupon by Petitioner, it certainly carries a meaning not intended by the Commission and for the inaptness of the language, if such exists, counsel takes full responsibility. Upon the expiration of the one year period granted in the certificate in which the applicant, Utah Natural Gas Company, may present evidence that it has an adequate supply of gas and adequate financing available it is the intention of the Public Service Commission of Utah to again set the matter down for hearing. All interested parties

will be given notice and will be given an opportunity to appear. The burden of proof will be upon the applicant, Utah Natural Gas Company to prove to the satisfaction of the Commission that an adequate supply of gas is available. This proof, of course, must come in the form of testimony by competent witnesses. The petitioner in this case, as well as all other protestants, will be given an opportunity to controvert this evidence if they feel that it is not reliable. However, the Commission felt that before it should proceed with any such hearing the applicant, Utah Natural Gas Company, should first furnish the Commission with documentary evidence which would establish *prima facie* that the requirements of the certificate had been met. It was not and is not the intention of the Commission to delegate any of its powers. When the necessary evidence is in as to whether or not the conditions of the certificate have been met, the Commission will then consider this additional evidence and on the basis of that evidence will reach its own findings as to whether or not Utah Natural Gas Company has complied with the orders of the Commission and is entitled to have its certificate made unconditional."

If the Commission's intention needed any clarification, the foregoing should be sufficient. But even should this Court presume that the Commission intended to deny Appellant a right to be heard on the question of "proven reserves", and intended to delegate to an "unknown geologist" the Commission's duty to finally determine an ultimate fact, it has not yet done so. Until it does so, Appellant has not been imposed upon and therefore makes a premature objection.

If Utah Natural Gas Company is unable to file its certificate, Appellant will be content and Respondent's



rights will terminate. If it does file the certificate the Commission will then be obliged to proceed. If it does so improperly Appellant can then object. Until that time the question is moot.

### POINT V.

THE COMMISSION'S FINDING THAT THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE NATURAL RESOURCES OF THE STATE IS DESIRABLE IS A PROPER FINDING AND IS NOT ONE WHICH INDICATES A FAILURE TO REGULARLY PURSUE ITS STATUTORY AUTHORITY.

The Appellant urges under Point H of its brief, at page 132, that the Commission did not regularly pursue its statutory authority, because by deciding that the development of Utah natural resources was desirable it thereby constituted itself "a development and conservation commission." This, the Appellant asserts, it had no authority to do and therefore its *ultra vires* finding makes its conditional order void.

Appellant's conclusion is allegedly supported by several cited cases. We desire to state the fact situations in these cases so that this Court may see for itself the extent to which Appellant has gone in its endeavor to make a point.

The only Utah case cited is *In Re Clays*, 1924-E P. U. R. 178, page 136 of Appellant's brief. In that case applicant sought a certificate of convenience and necessity to build an ore tramway from Alta to Wasatch in Little



Cottonwood Canyon. The Utah Public Service Commission, after reviewing the testimony, said at page 188:

“Under all the circumstances and facts shown to exist, we are of the opinion that this case does not come within the provisions of the section of the act authorizing the Commission to issue a certificate of convenience and necessity before the tramway is constructed, and that the Commission *has no jurisdiction to authorize or deny the construction of the tramway.*” (Italics ours.)

There is not a word in the case applicable to Appellant’s contention.

In *Northwest Businessmen’s Association v. Illinois Commission*, 168 N. E. 890, page 136 of Appellant’s brief, the Supreme Court of Illinois held that the Commerce Commission of Illinois could not rescind a prior order made without making findings of fact different from the findings made in support of the original order, either on the grounds that the original findings were erroneous or that the facts had changed. The Illinois Supreme Court held that the Commission, without doing this, could not change its original order simply on a policy basis.

In *State Ex Rel. Thatcher v. Boyle, et al.*, 204 P. 378, at page 137 of Appellant’s brief, the Appellant quotes the *syllabus* to the effect that administrative tribunals are creatures of statute, which fact no one can deny. The only point cited in the *Thatcher* case was whether the Montana Public Service Commission was authorized by its enabling statute to regulate, as a public utility, irrigation companies. The enabling statute included “water for business”.

The Montana Court properly, we think, held that the irrigation company could not be regulated as a public utility under such a statute.

In *Backus-Brooks Company v. Northern Pacific Railroad Company, et al.*, 21 F. (2d) 4, page 137 of Appellant's brief, the 8th Circuit Court of Appeals held that the federal district court was without jurisdiction to fix joint rates because the preliminary question of what constituted a just and proper rate had not been determined by the proper commissions, to wit, the Interstate Commerce Commission and the State Commission of Minnesota, and that therefore the district court was without jurisdiction to award damages to a stockholder on account of a division of these joint rates. As a part of this decision the Circuit Court held that the Commission of Minnesota by reason of the broad legislative language which conferred powers on it was able to fix and establish joint rates. In reasoning to this conclusion, the court by way of dicta stated the general proposition that commissions created by statute can exercise only those powers which are delegated to it. Surely this is not debatable.

In *Re Montana Dakota Power Company*, P. U. R. 1929-A 369, page 134 of Appellant's brief, several applicants sought certificates to construct an electric transmission line within the state in an area already being served. The main object of the transmission line, so far as the applicant Scranton Electric was concerned, appeared to be to provide a possible market for slack coal which was to be used as generating fuel, and so to build up that mining property. It appeared, however, from the testimony as found by the

Commission, that "the proposed transmission line and local plants are incidental to the coal mining industry." It thus appears that the case in reality shows that the North Dakota Board considered the very policy question which the Appellant claims could not properly be determined.

We respectfully submit that the generalities, dicta and contrary rulings in the foregoing cases not only fail to support Appellant's point, they actually argue against it. The powers given to the Public Service Commission of the State of Utah are extremely broad. In 76-4-1, *supra*, the Commission is given "power and jurisdiction to supervise and regulate every public utility in this state, and to do all things, whether herein specifically designated or not, in addition thereto, which are necessary or convenient in the exercise and power of such jurisdiction." We submit that from this general grant alone the Commission was amply justified in finding that the development of natural resources of the state is desirable.

But even should we assume for the purpose of argument that the Commission's so called "policy finding" in this regard, constitutes a finding which was beyond the Commission's delegated power, is it conceivable that such a finding, which is undisputably in the best interests of the state, will invalidate the Commission's order? We submit that taking Appellant's argument at its best the conclusion reached is not only unsupported by authorities, but it is in its fundamental aspects erroneous. Furthermore, it is apparent from a reading of the Report and Order made that the Commission's finding of convenience and necessity was

not solely based on this so called policy finding but was based on many other facts therein stated.

#### POINT VI.

THE COMMISSION DID NOT EXCEED ITS  
LAWFUL AUTHORITY IN HEARING THE AP-  
PLICATION OF THE UTAH NATURAL GAS  
COMPANY BEFORE IT HEARD THE APPLI-  
CATION OF APPELLANT.

Under Point I of Appellant's brief, page 139, Appellant contends that because the Public Service Commission of Utah heard the Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company's application first, without hearing Appellant's application, it proceeded unlawfully. In support of this proposition Appellant cites several cases wherein it is generally stated that "priority in the field does not of itself govern the granting of a certificate."

We will not cite cases to challenge this proposition, although we do point out that there are many cases which also support holdings that "the applicant who first files an application for a certificate of convenience and necessity should receive an award due his diligence." (See cases cited in P. U. R. Digest, Vol. 1, Section 95). Undoubtedly both of the foregoing generalizations correctly state the law.

In the instant case the Commission received an application from the Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company on May 29, 1950 (R. 1106). An amended application was

filed on November 17, 1950 (R. 1111). Notice of hearing was given on the 21st day of November, 1950. This notice was published as required by law. On December 11, 1950, the case came on for hearing in the Governor's board room at the Capitol Building. The room was filled with interested parties. Some of them appeared to either object to or support Respondent's application (R. 1, 2, 6, 7). At that time Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company appeared with all its witnesses. Most of them were from out of the state. Notwithstanding these facts the Appellant on this morning, for the first time, entered an appearance and indicated that it had an interest in the proceeding.

The facts show that two days before this appearance it had been incorporated and presumably had filed an application before the Federal Power Commission. On the morning of its appearance Appellant had not filed an application for an intrastate certificate before the Utah Commission and did not file such application until more than six weeks later, and after Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company had presented its evidence. (Appellant's brief, page 150.)

The Respondent Utah Natural Gas Company objected to Appellant's appearance as a party in intervention and the Commission, after considering the matter, overruled the objection and permitted Appellant to appear for the limited purpose of objecting to the application of the Utah Natural Gas Company.

More than six weeks after the first hearing date on Respondent's application Appellant filed for the first time



its application before the Utah Public Service Commission seeking an intrastate certificate to construct its proposed pipe line (Appellant's brief, page 150).

On this showing Appellant claims the Utah Public Service Commission erred in proceeding with Respondent's application without hearing Appellant's application first. We submit that such a contention is so unreasonable that it does not merit a serious answer. Does the Appellant seriously contend that the Public Service Commission of Utah should delay a matter which has already been set, with witnesses present and all present, except Appellant, ready to proceed, until Appellant files its application and prepares a case? Suppose the Commission had been so indulgent; what would have been accomplished? Until Appellant receives a certificate of convenience and necessity from the Federal Power Commission, any action taken by the Public Service Commission of Utah would not only be premature, it would be moot. Furthermore, had the Commission delayed the hearing or decision on Respondent's application until such time as the Federal Power Commission had determined whether or not Appellant should receive an interstate certificate of convenience and necessity, the matter would still be in abeyance and in all probability would remain in abeyance for several years to come. For these reasons, as well as for many others that may appear, we submit that the Commission would have acted arbitrarily and capriciously if it had delayed the matter as suggested by Appellant in its brief.



## POINT VII.

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH DID NOT ACT ARBITRARILY AND CAPRICIOUSLY IN NOT HAVING A FULL JOINT HEARING BEFORE THE FEDERAL POWER COMMISSION BEFORE RULING ON RESPONDENT'S APPLICATION.

In Point K under Proposition IV of Appellant's brief, page 162, Appellant contends that it was the duty of the Utah Commission to obtain a joint hearing of the entire case. To support this strange conclusion it cites 1.37 (c) of the Federal Power Commission Rules and Regulations, and states that on December 21, 1950, the Federal Power Commission wrote a letter to the Public Service Commission of Utah inquiring whether or not the latter desired a joint hearing.

We, of course, are unable to determine from the record whether the foregoing allegations are so. We assume that the Federal Power Commission rule is correctly stated, but we are entirely uninformed as to the contents of any letter which the Federal Power Commission did, or did not, send to the Utah Commission. Furthermore, we do not know whether or not the Utah Commission answered such letter, and if so what conclusions were reached. So far as we know the Federal Power Commission and the Utah Commission may have consulted together and reached some tentative conclusion relative to the entire matter. In any event, all these matters are outside the record and we do not propose to engage in profitless argument about

things which may or may not exist, and which in any event are not properly before this Court.

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